
 

 

REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020  

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, on 

Wednesday, April 22, 2020, at 12:00 p.m.  

 

**This will be a virtual meeting conducted online via GoToMeeting. Persons wishing to attend the 

meeting can call toll free 1-866-899-4679 and enter the access code of 817-288-253. To join the 

meeting via video, please follow this link: https://www.gotomeet.me/BeckyMelton/rwrd-board-

meeting-april-22-2020. The Board meeting agenda can be found at www.rwrd.org.**  

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts and 

donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing security 

personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters (Section 

551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session on any item 

on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and will 

identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that authorizes the closed or 

executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes per 

speaker, subject to the provisions set forth under Section 551.007 of the Texas Government 

Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

1

https://www.gotomeet.me/BeckyMelton/rwrd-board-meeting-april-22-2020
https://www.gotomeet.me/BeckyMelton/rwrd-board-meeting-april-22-2020
http://www.rwrd.org/


 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding February 19, 2020 Regular Meeting 

minutes. 

 

V. REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution allowing Oak 

Grove Water Supply Corporation to become a full member of Riverbend Water 

Resources District. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution reviewing and 

approving updates to the Investment Policy & Strategies. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding a presentation on the recent retail rate study 

conducted by Chris Ekrut with NewGen Strategies. 

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement with TML Health 

Benefits Pool to provide employee health and life insurance benefits. 

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving 

amendments to the FY 2019-2020 Administrative Member Fund Budget and the 

2019-2020 Wet Utilities Budget. 

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

second quarter FY 2019-2020 Financial Statements.  

 

G. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving the 

second quarter FY 2019-2020 Investment Report. 

 

2



 

 

H. Discussion and possible action regarding Wright Patman Lake and various regional 

water issues, including activities in the Arkansas and Texas Legislatures. 

 

VII. REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed 

or executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice 

from its attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); 

discussing gifts and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 

551.074); discussing security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing 

economic development matters (Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a 

determination to go into executive session on any item on this agenda, the Presiding 

Officer will announce that an executive session will be held and will identify the item to 

be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that authorizes the closed or 

executive session. 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, May 27, 2020 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A 

Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 
*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested 

to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the appropriate 
arrangements. 

3



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

February 19, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

February 19, 2020 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Sonja Hubbard, President 

of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Sonja Hubbard, President 

Tina Veal-Gooch, Vice President 

Van Alexander, Treasurer 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

Fred Milton, Past President 

 

Directors Absent:  

None 

  

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Tara Houck, Chief Financial Officer 

Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Sonja Hubbard led the invocation and the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

Item IV.A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval. 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding January 22, 2020 Regular Called 

Meeting Minutes. 

5



 

  

 

A single motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Van Alexander to 

approve the Consent Agenda Items as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority (SRBA). 

 

No report.  

 

No action taken. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center 

(TAC). 

 

Scott Norton thanked Riverbend for all their support. 

 

No action taken.  

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

Sonja Hubbard provided information on REDI procuring land for development.  

Miller County and the City of Texarkana, Arkansas have agreed to fund that 

purchase. They are doing the same on the Texas side in Bowie County.  

 

No action taken. 

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding acknowledging the completion and 

submission of the update to the Sulphur River Basin Water Availability Model as 

conducted and submitted by Robert J. Brandes Consulting. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that the update was completed by Bob Brandes. Mr. Brandes 

submitted it to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). Dawn 

Pilcher of LJA Engineering provided a summary of the information updated in the 

Water Availability Model (WAM). Ms. Pilcher stated that, since the original Water 

Availability Model was completed, Texas has experienced another round of significant, 

widespread droughts in various regions. In order to capture and evaluate recent events, 

TCEQ has begun extending WAM updates to stretch the current period of record 

through 2017.  

A motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Fred Milton to approve 

RESO 20200219-01 acknowleding the completion and submission of the update to the 

Sulphur River Basin Availability Model.  The motion passed unanimously. 

6



 

  

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement(s) for risk 

management insurance with the TWCA Risk Management Fund. 

Kyle Dooley provided that this is the annual renewal of the agreement with TWCA 

RMF for worker’s compensation and risk management insurance.  

A motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Tina Veal-Gooch to approve 

RESO 20200219-02 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to execute a renewal 

agreement for risk management services with TWCA RMF. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to enter into negotiations with an engineering firm for 

water tower rehabilitation design as well as location selection for a new chlorine 

injection station. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that there are a couple of projects on the Red River Army Depot 

Capital Improvement Project list that will need to be completed this year. One of them 

is the rehabilitation of a water tower on James Carlow Drive and the other is a study to 

discover the optimal location for a chlorine injection station. Mr. Dooley stated that the 

firm(s) chosen for these projects will be selected from the Engineering Master List 

created in November 2018. The negotiated contracts will be approved by counsel and 

the Board. 

A motion was made by Fred Milton and seconded by Marshall Wood to approve 

RESO 20200219-03 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to enter into negotiations 

with an engineering firm for water tower rehabilitation design as well as location 

selection for a new chlorine injection station.  The motion passed unanimously. 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to enter into an agreement with TexAmericas Center and 

the City of New Boston, Texas regarding services provided to the West Campus 

of TexAmericas Center. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the needed infrastructure to provide water or 

wastewater services to the West Campus of TexAmericas Center (TAC). The West 

Campus is inside Riverbend’s Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) 

however, Riverbend does not currently have any infrastructure in that area. This 

agreement allows for cooperation between Riverbend and the City of New Boston 

should a tenant in this area need services and Riverbend is unable to or declines to 

provide the service.  This agreement will merely allow the City of  New Boston to 

provide needed services in the event that Riverbend is unable to do so in a timely 

manner for the incoming tenant.  Marshall Wood did ask to be sure that allowing this 

to happen will not affect the validity of Riverbend’s CCN nor will it hinder Riverbend 

from becoming the service provider for that area in the future.   

 

A motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Tina Veal-Gooch to approve 

RESO 20200219-04 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to enter into an 

agreement with TexAmericas Center and the City of New Boston, Texas regarding 

7



 

  

services provided to the West Campus of TexAmericas Center.The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding Wright Patman Lake and various 

regional water issues, including activities in the Arkansas and Texas Legislatures. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that in late January staff received word that there has been some 

positive movement with regards to the contibuted funds agreement with the US Army 

Corps of Engineers (USACE). There had been word that Secretary R.D. James had sent 

congressional letters to the Charimen of the House and Senate appropriations 

committees notifying them of his intent to sign the contributed funds agreement to 

perform the cultural resources study required to implement the end-state contract. In 

February an email from Kathy Spillane confirmed that those letters had been sent but 

to date there had been no reponse from the committees. Negotiations on this agreement 

can begin but finalizing and signing them is contingent on getting positive responses 

back from those committees. Ms. Spillane is working on scheduling a meeting with 

Riverbend representatives and the USACE to begin contract negotiations.  

 

No action taken. 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease beginning at 12:32 p.m.  

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:35 p.m with quorum pursuant to sections 

551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 The board came out of Executive Session at 1:08 p.m. 

 The board reconvened with quorum at 1:09 p.m. 

 

VII.  Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

Fred Milton provided information on the upcoming Region D meeting to be held on 

Wednesday, February 26th at the Region 8 Education building in Pittsburg, Texas. 

They will be discussing Chapter 6 of the Initially Prepared Plan (IPP). At the last 

meeting, there were significant comments voicing their concern about new projects 

upstream in Region D solely in support of Region C. There will be a vote on the IPP 

next week. Mr. Milton will not be in attendance and is permitted to appoint an 

alternate to cast a vote in his name. No action taken. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided informaiton on the new water facility and the SRF Application. 

The Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) is still planning to vote on our 

application on March 26, 2020.  

 

The water rights application is still being reviewed. In response to a request for more 

information, Riverbend sent a packet of the requested information in mid-January. 

There has been no update since TWDB received the packet. 

8



 

  

 

There will be a meeting to discuss the draft Water Supply Contracts. It will either be 

on Monday, February 24, or Tuesday, February 25 between the City of New Boston 

and those cities represented by Jason Hill. Those cities are Hooks, Avery, De Kalb, 

Wake Village, and Nash. They are meeting to discuss Section 13 of the contrat which 

references the cities’ pro-rata share of the water system after the debt is paid off. This 

section of the new contract is very similar to what was written in the original 1969 

contracts. The improvements would be Riverbend’s until the debt is paid off. At that 

time each entity would be able to request an undivided interest in the system that is 

proportionate to the percentage of the debt that was paid by the entity. The other option 

is that Riverbend will own the entire system once the debt is paid off.  Once they decide 

how they would like to this section to read, the contract can be finalized and signed. 

This is the most important item to discuss regarding the new water supply contract.  

 

The technical amendment to the original water supply contracts between the Texarkana 

Water Utilities (TWU) and the member cities is still under review by counsel for the 

member cities. This is a technical amendment to the original contract between 

Texarkana and the original 7 member cities. TWU shared a copy of a letter with Mr. 

Dooley from TCEQ that stated they are in violation of an agreed order with TCEQ and 

they have until February 25, 2020 to get documentation back to TCEQ to verify they 

are now in compliance with that agreed order. This violation stems from an inspection 

done on the main line down Highway 82 determining that instead of a Transmission 

Line, it should be classified as a Distribution Line. The new classification deems that a 

nitrification action plan as well as a monitoring plan must be in place. Because of how 

the Point of Delivery is defined in the current water supply contracts, TCEQ will now 

look at the ground storage tanks inside each city as part of TWU’s distribution system. 

That means that each city will lose credit for the capacity of the ground storage tanks 

in their system and each city will now have to remove their pumps from the storage 

tanks because the owner of the distribution system (TWU) is the only entity permitted 

to have pumps on those tanks. A solution is to change the definition of the Point of 

Delivery in the original contract. Currently the Point of Delivery is on the downstream 

end of the tank. The new definition would put it at the meter which is just before the 

tank. This would satisfy the agreed order with TCEQ. Nothing else in the contract will 

change. No requirements or responsibilities to the member cities would change.  TWU 

is up against a hard deadline. This documentation is due on Monday and, as of today, 

they are still working out the language of the amendment. If it is finalized, it can be 

turned around very quickly and TCEQ will be satisfied. 

 

TWCA Annual Conference is March 4th through the 6th in Fort Worth. Sonja Hubbard 

and Fred Milton are planning on attending with Kyle.  Texas Water Days in 

Washington D.C. is March 24th through the 26th. Sonja Hubbard and Fred Milton are 

attending with Kyle.  

 

No action taken.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Please note the deviation from the posted Riverbend Calendar: 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, March 18, 2020 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices, 228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

9



 

  

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Marshall Wood and 

seconded by Van Alexander to adjourn the meeting at 1:47 p.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

The minutes of Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, February 

19, 2020 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2020. 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

10



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-01 

Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation 

Membership into Riverbend 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION 20200422-01 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RIVERBEND WATER 

RESOURCES DISTRICT TO ACCEPT OAK GROVE WATER SUPPLY 

CORPORATION’S PETITION FOR MEMBERSHIP AND NEGOTIATE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WHEREBY OAK GROVE WATER SUPPLY 

CORPORATION SHALL THEREIN AFTER BE DESIGNATED AS A MEMBER OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, by way of correspondence dated March 4, 2020, the president of Oak Grove 

Water Supply Corporation, hereinafter (“OGWSC”), petitioned Riverbend Water Resources 

District for membership in the district as provided under Texas Special District Local Laws Code 

§ 9601.005(b) as amended by the 2019 Regular Session of the 86th Legislature; and 

   WHEREAS, OGWSC desires to procure certain services from Riverbend Water 

Resources District in exchange for its participation in funding the development of Riverbend Water 

Resources District projects as a member of the district.   

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RIVERBEND WATER 

RESOURCES DISTRICT: 

1. That the District, giving due consideration toward OGWSC’s petition for 

membership, hereby accepts said petition finding the request for membership to be 

in compliance with its enabling statute, specifically Texas Special District Local 

Laws Code § 9601.005(b) as amended by the 2019 Regular Session of the 86th 

Legislature. 

 

2. That OGWSC, as a member of the district, will become eligible to receive certain 

services from Riverbend Water Resources District in exchange for an agreement to 

participate in the funding of the development of Riverbend projects. 

 

3. That the District’s Executive Director/CEO be and is hereby designated as the 

authorized representative of Riverbend Water Resources District for purposes of 

negotiating an agreement between Riverbend Water Resources District and 

OGWSC whereby OGWSC, as a member of the district, will participate in the 

funding of the development of Riverbend projects in exchange for certain services 

to be provided by Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 
12



 
4. That the District’s Executive Director/CEO is hereby designated to negotiate an 

agreement with OGWSC having the same or similar materials terms outlined in the 

Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between the Central Bowie Water Supply 

Corporation and Riverbend Water Resources District bearing an effective date of 

October 22, 2019, a copy of which is attached hereto.   

 

5. That upon the effective date of the agreement between Riverbend Water Resources 

District and OGWSC, then OGWSC shall become and thereinafter designated as a 

member of the district as provided under § 9601.005(b) of the Texas Special 

District Local Laws Code, subject to the provisions of Riverbend Water Resources 

District’s enabling statute as fully set forth under Chapter 9601 of the Texas Special 

District Local Laws Code. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the 22nd day of April 2020. 

 

 

     ___________________________________ 

      Sonja Hubbard, President, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Secretary, Secretary  

 

Attached: Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation Membership Petition and Draft Contract 

13



14



 

 

Member Agreement 

 

This Member Agreement, hereinafter ("Agreement"), is entered into by and between Central 

Bowie County Water Supply Corporation, hereinafter ("CBCWSC"), a not-for-profit water supply 

corporation duly incorporated under the laws of this state and operating under Chapter 67 of the 

Texas Water Code, and Riverbend Water Resources District, hereinafter ("Riverbend"), a 

conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of 

Section 59 Article XVI, Texas Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth 

in Chapter 9601 of the Special District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas. 

 

Recitals 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend is a local governmental entity and political subdivision of the state of 

Texas, created by the Texas Legislature under the authority of the Texas Constitution, CBCWSC 

deems it appropriate for Riverbend to establish and/or maintain contact with various federal and 

state governmental entities or agencies or political subdivisions on CBCWSC's behalf with 

respect to water supply and conservation, among other purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, CBCWSC desires to procure certain services from Riverbend and participate in the 

funding of the development of Riverbend projects as a member of the district in exchange for a 

specified fee and dollar-for-dollar credit towards participation in future water purchase should 

Riverbend develop such capability, and Riverbend is willing to provide such services and agree 

to such credits. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises, covenants and 

agreements contained herein, CBCWSC and Riverbend hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Term 
 

1.1 Initial Term. This Agreement is for a five-year term, commencing on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. 
 

1.2 Renewal Term. This Agreement shall automatically renew for 

subsequent, one-year terms, unless terminated pursuant to Section 7 of this 

Agreement. 

 
2. Membership in District 
 

As reflected in the minutes of the Riverbend Board of Directors on the 14th day of 

August 2019, upon the Effective Date of this Agreement and thereafter CBCWSC 

shall become a member of the district subject to the provisions of Riverbend Water 

Resources District's enabling statute as fully set forth under Chapter 9601 of the 

Texas Special District Local Laws Code. 

 

 

15



 

 

3. Riverbend's Services 
 

Schedule of Services. Riverbend agrees to perform services on behalf of 

CBCWSC as set forth in Schedule A to this Agreement, incorporated herein by 

reference for all purposes. 

 
4. CBCWSC's Advances and Credits 
 

4.1 Advances. For each year during the term of the Agreement, CBCWSC shall 

pay or otherwise dedicate funds to the operation of Riverbend pursuant to 

Section 4, ("Advances"). These Advances shall be used by Riverbend for 

any costs, fees, or expenses, including internal costs, as permitted by law 

and Riverbend's enabling legislation. 

 
4.2 Credits. If Riverbend develops a project with capability of providing 

potable water to CBCWSC ("Project"), then the amount of Advances made 

by CBCWSC shall be exchanged by CBCWSC, without interest, penalties, 

or fees, in the form of a water purchase credit for the purchase of water 

("Credits") from Riverbend. Each one dollar in Advances shall be 

exchanged for one dollar in Credits that Riverbend shall accept for the 

purchase of water. The price of water provided by Riverbend shall be based 

on cost as determined outside of the terms of this Agreement. Credits will 

be available for use after cost is determined and execution of any contract 

that specifies the price of water from Riverbend and immediately following 

the development, construction, and operation of  

Riverbend's Project. 

 

4.3 Use of Credits. On or before July 1 of each year after Riverbend's Project 

is completed and operational, CBCWSC shall provide Riverbend written 

notice of the intent to use available Credits and the amount of available 

Credits proposed to be used during the upcoming budget year. Credits may 

not be transferred, assigned, or otherwise sold without the agreement of 

Riverbend. CBCWSC and Riverbend agree that Riverbend may limit the 

amount of Credits accepted to maintain adequate funds necessary for its 

day-to-day operations, and the pro-rata percentage of such limitation, as 

determined by Riverbend's Board of Directors. 

 
4.4 Failure to Construct Project. The parties understand that should certain 

outside influences beyond Riverbend's control, such as environmental 

circumstances, denial of water permit, or failure to obtain necessary 

funding, prohibit Riverbend in proceeding with the Project, Riverbend shall 

have no liability to refund any Advances made by CBCWSC. However, if 

Riverbend decides, within five (5) years of the Effective Date of this 

Agreement, that it does not wish to develop, construct or operate the Project, 

16



 

 

other than the reasons stated in the preceding sentence, Riverbend shall 

repay Advances made by CBCWSC, together with any interest at the 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York prime rate minus one percent (1%) as 

posted on the date of the advance. Riverbend may make the repayment over 

a ten (10) year period in equal annual installments from its budgeted 

available revenues. Upon the refund of all advances, Riverbend will have 

no further obligation to CBCWSC. 

 

4.5 No Obligation to Develop Project/Price of Water Not Established. Nothing 

in this Agreement, nor any payment of Advances or issuance of Credits, 

shall (a) obligate Riverbend to develop, construct, or operate the Project or 

any portion thereof, or (b) be construed as establishing the price of water. 

If the Project is developed and constructed, Riverbend shall prepare water 

purchase agreements that will set the price of water based on actual cost 

plus any reasonable charges necessary for the proper operation, 

maintenance and improvements necessary to operate the Project. The water 

purchase agreements will establish the amount of water based on the 

percentage of participation in advanced funding of Riverbend's annual 

budget and stipulate the maximum number of Credits available for use by 

CBCWSC for a budget year. 

 

5. CBCWSC's Fee to Riverbend 

 

5.1 In consideration of the Credits set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement, and 

in consideration for Riverbend's services to be provided pursuant to Section 

3 of this Agreement, CBCWSC agrees to pay or dedicate to Riverbend the 

following fee, pro-rated on a monthly basis: 

 

FEE COMPONENT (expressed in U.S. cents) per 1,000 gallons of 

potable water processed through "COMPANY facilities", that 

CBCWSC purchases from the City of Texarkana, Texas. 

 

For the first year of this agreement, the FEE COMPONENT shall be fixed 

at $0.045. For subsequent years under this Agreement, the FEE 

COMPONENT may be increased or decreased as determined during the 

"true-up" process. 

 
 5.2 "COMPANY facilities", as that term is used in section 5.1, incorporates 

herein by reference Schedule A of the 1969 "Water Supply System Sale-

Purchase-Financing Agreement" between Lake Texarkana Water Supply 

Corporation and the City of Texarkana, Texas, and shall have the same 

meaning as that term is used in the 1969 water supply contracts with 

17



 

 

Riverbend's members. 

 

6. Primary Contacts 
 

The parties establish the primary contact persons for any issue arising under or 

touching upon the Agreement: 

 
 6.1 for CBCWSC, its President; and 
 
 6.2 for Riverbend, its Executive Director/CEO 
 

7. Termination 
 

The Agreement may be terminated as follows: 
 
 7.1 by mutual agreement of the parties; 
 
 7.2 by either CBCWSC of Riverbend, upon notice to the other party of one 

(1) year prior to the effective date of termination; 
 

 7.3 by CBCWSC, upon failure of Riverbend to perform any of its obligations 

under the Agreement, such failure not being cured by Riverbend within 

sixty (60) days following CBCWSC giving Riverbend written notice of 

CBCWSC's intent to terminate the Contract; or 

 
 7.4 by Riverbend, upon failure of CBCWSC to perform any of its obligations 

under the Agreement, such failure not being cured by CBCWSC within 

sixty (60) days following Riverbend giving CBCWSC written notice of 

Riverbend's intent to terminate the Contract. 

 

8. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

 8.1 Assignment: This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of 

Riverbend and CBCWSC and is not intended to confer any benefit or right 

upon any other parties or parties not expressly provided herein. This 

Agreement shall not be assigned by CBCWSC to any other party without 
the prior written consent of Riverbend. 
 

8.2 Authority: The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of 

Riverbend and CBCWSC are duly authorized by their respective 

organizations to enter into this Agreement and are acting on behalf of said 

entities in signing this document. In entering into this Agreement CBCWSC 

verifies that it (i) does not boycott Israel; and (ii) will not boycott Israel 

during the term of the Agreement as prohibited under section 2270.002 of 

the Texas Government Code. 

 

18



 

 

8.3 Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the state of Texas, and Riverbend and 

CBCWSC consent to the jurisdiction of the state district courts serving 

Bowie County, Texas over all matters relating to this Agreement. 

As a condition precedent to any legal action, Riverbend and CBCWSC 

jointly agree to submit any such disputes to mediation in the event the 

parties are unable to amicably resolve their differences. Each party shall 

bear its own costs associated with any such alternative dispute resolution. 

 

 

8.4 Legal Construction: Nothing in this Agreement is intended to waive any 
governmental immunity available to Riverbend under Texas law. 
 

8.5 Enforceability/Severability: If any provision of this Agreement shall be 

invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, such provision shall be 

deemed to be modified or restricted to the extent and in the manner 

necessary to render same valid and enforceable, or shall be deemed 

excided from this Agreement, as the case may require, and this Agreement 

shall be construed and enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law 

as if such provision had been originally incorporated herein as so modified 

or restricted, or as if such provision had not been originally incorporated 

herein, as the case may be. 

 

8.6 Entire Agreement/Modification: This Agreement constitutes the entire 

understanding and agreement between Riverbend and CBCWSC regarding 

the subject-matter set forth herein and it supersedes all prior agreements 

whether oral or written between the parties hereto with respect to the subject-

matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified except by a 

subsequent written agreement signed by both parties. 

 

8.7 Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but which together 

constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers with an effective date, ("Effective Date"), as of the date of the last 

signature affixed hereto: 

 

 

CBCWSC: 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________  Date:  _____________________ 

 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 ________________________________ 

  

 

 

 

Riverbend Water Resources District: 

 
 

 

By: ________________________________  Date:  _____________________ 

 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

 

 ________________________________ 

20



 

 

Schedule A 

Services to be provided by Riverbend under this Agreement shall include the following: 

 1. Acting as CBCWSC's agent in coordination with CBCWSC's board and the 

City Manager of Texarkana, Texas in the following matters: 

a. negotiating with the United States Army Corps of Engineers regarding 

contractual rights and responsibilities with respect to the entire pool in the 

Lake Wright Patman Reservoir; 

b. securing water permits and permissions from the Texas Water Development 

Board, Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, and any other state or 
federal agency, with respect to the entire pool in the Lake Wright Patman 
Reservoir, corresponding with item 1(a), above; 

c. negotiating with governmental entities or political subdivisions outside of 

Texas Regional Water Planning Group - Region D regarding the purchase of 

water in the Lake Wright Patman Reservoir, corresponding with items 1(a) 

and 1(b), above; and, 

d. attendance at and participation in state and regional water planning and 

development meetings. 

The term "coordination" as used in this Section 1 shall include the following: 

• Notifying the Texarkana, Texas Mayor and CBCWSC President in advance of 

any meetings or engagements which correspond with items 1(a), 1(b), 1(e), or 

1(d), that Agent intends to either attend or participate in, so as to facilitate 

CBCWSC attendance; and regardless of CBCWSC attendance, submitting a 

written summary of such meetings or engagements to the Mayor and 

CBCWSC President, detailing any tasks or commitments Agent proposes or 

recommends for CBCWSC. 

• Submitting a monthly status report to the Texarkana, Texas City Council on 

all major efforts which correspond with items 1(a), 1(b), 1(e), or 1(d), 

including securing water rights, providing water resources to the region, 

funding of recommended goals and efforts (including identification of 

revenues, sources of revenue, and expenditures), and defining any 

impediments towards achieving the recommended goals and efforts. 

Agent shall have no authority to bind the CBCWSC or the CBCWSC board on any 

matter. The City Council may revoke this Section 1 at any time with or without 

cause. 

 2. Supervising performance of 1969 water supply contracts and any 

extensions/amendments thereto. 

21



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM IV. B. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-02 

Investment Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200422-02 
 

AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY AND STRATEGIES 

OF THE RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Act of Texas (the "Act") as amended, requires the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District to annually review its Investment Policy and 

Strategies; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has reviewed and approved its 

Investment Policy and Strategies on an annual basis beginning April 13, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District desires to review and update accordingly, 

its policies and procedures regarding the principles and criteria involved in the handling of district 

investments; and to make readily available these policies and procedures to the public in written 

form; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District, after its annual review, hereby adopts this Investment Policy and 

Strategies dated April 22, 2020. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2020 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 
Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Marshall Wood, Secretary 

Attached: Investment Policy and Strategies, dated April 22, 2020 

23



Riverbend Water Resource District  

Investment Policy and Strategies  

April 22, 2020 

Scope 

This Investment Policy and Strategies shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the 

Riverbend Water Resources District (“RWRD” or the “District”). These funds are accounted for 

in the District's Financial Statements. 

Prudence 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care — under circumstances then prevailing — 

which a person of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercises in the management of his or 

her own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of his 

or her capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be 

used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the 

context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment Officer(s) acting in accordance with 

written procedures and the Investment Policy and Strategies and exercising due diligence shall 

be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price 

changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate 

action is taken to control adverse developments. In determining whether an investment official 

has exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be made 

taking into consideration the investment of all funds over which the official had responsibility 

rather than consideration as to the prudence of a single investment and, whether the investment 

decision was consistent with the District’s Investment Policy and Strategies and written 

investment procedures. 

Objectives 

It is the policy of the District that, giving due regard to the safety and risk of investment, all 

available funds shall be invested in conformance with state and federal regulations, applicable 

bond resolution requirements, and this adopted Investment Policy and Strategies. 

A. In accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act (the “Act”), the following prioritized 

objectives (in order of importance in accordance with Section 2256.005(d) of the Act), 

apply for each of the District's investment strategies: 

Page 1 of 12 

24



B. Suitability — It is important to understand the suitability of the investment to the 

financial requirements of the District. Only eligible investments listed in the Investment 

Policy and Strategies are suitable for District funds. 

C. Safety — Preservation and safety of principal are also of importance. All investments 

shall be of high quality securities with no perceived default risk. Market price 

fluctuations will occur, however managing the weighted average days to maturity for 

each fund type as specified will minimize these fluctuations. 

D. Liquidity — To enable the District to meet operating requirements that might be 

reasonably anticipated, the District's investment portfolio must maintain a sufficient level 

of liquidity. This shall be achieved by matching investment maturities with forecasted 

cash flow requirements, by maintaining at least 5% of the District's funds in overnight 

investments and by investing in securities with active secondary markets. Short-term 

investment pools and money market mutual funds provide daily liquidity and may be 

utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity investments. 

E. Marketability — Securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in 

the event of unanticipated cash requirements. Historical market "spreads" between the 

bid and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of a percentage 

point shall define an efficient secondary market. 

F. Diversification — Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget cycle 

to provide cash flow based on the anticipated needs of the district. Diversifying the 

appropriate maturity structure will reduce market cycle risk. Also, restricting the sum of 

investments purchased from certain issuers will reduce the credit risk exposure of the 

portfolio. 

G. Yield — Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio 

restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling six-month 

treasury bill portfolio shall be the minimum yield objective or "benchmark". A secondary 

objective will be to obtain a yield equal to or in excess of a local government investment 

pool, money market mutual fund or average Federal Reserve discount rate. 

The first measure of success in this area will be the attainment of enough income to offset 

inflationary increases. Even though steps will be taken to obtain this goal, the Investment 

Officer(s) shall constantly be cognizant of the standard of care and the investment objectives 

pursuant to the provisions of the amended Act, Section 2256.006(a). 

The Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transactions that might impair public confidence in the 

District’s ability to govern effectively. The governing body recognizes that in diversifying the 

portfolio, occasional measured losses due to market volatility are inevitable, and must be 

considered within the context of the overall portfolio's investment return, provided that adequate 

Page 2 of 12 
25



diversification has been implemented. The prudence of the investment decision shall be measured 

in accordance with the tests set forth in Section 2256.006(b) of the Act. 

I. Investing Strategies 

Each major fund type has varying cash flow requirements and liquidity needs. Therefore, specific 

strategies shall be implemented considering the individual fund's unique requirements and the 

following shall be considered separate investment strategies for each of the funds mentioned 

below. District funds shall be analyzed and invested according to the following major fund types: 

A. Operating Funds — Investment strategies for operating funds and commingled pools 

containing operating funds have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash 

flows are matched with adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to 

structure a portfolio, which will minimize volatility during economic cycles. This may be 

accomplished by purchasing high quality, short-term securities, which will complement 

each other in a laddered maturity structure. A dollar weighted average maturity of 365 

days or less will be maintained and calculated by using the stated final maturity date of 

each security. 

B. Debt Service Funds — Investment strategies for debt service funds shall have as the 

primary objective the assurance of investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service 

obligation on the required payment date. Securities purchased shall not have a stated final 

maturity date which exceeds the debt service payment date. A dollar weighted average 

maturity of 365 days or less will be maintained and calculated by using the stated final 

maturity date of each security. 

C. Debt Service Reserve Funds — Investment strategies for debt service reserve emergency 

and contingency funds shall have as the primary objective the ability to generate a 

dependable revenue stream to the appropriate fund from securities with a low degree of 

volatility. Securities should be of high quality and, except as may be required by the 

bond ordinance specific to an individual issue, of short to intermediate-term maturities 

with stated final maturities not exceeding five (5) years and a weighted average maturity 

not to exceed 730 days. Volatility shall be further controlled through the purchase of 

securities carrying the highest coupon available, within the desired maturity and quality 

range, without paying a premium, if at all possible. Such securities will tend to hold their 

value during economic cycles. 

D. Construction and Special Purpose Funds — Investment strategies for construction 

projects or special purpose fund portfolios will have as their primary objective to assure 

that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate investment liquidity. These 

portfolios should include at least 10% in highly liquid securities to allow for flexibility 

and unanticipated project outlays. The stated final maturity dates of securities held should 

not exceed the estimated project completion date. A dollar weighted average maturity of 

Page 3 of 12 
26



180 days or less will be maintained and calculated by using the stated final maturity of 

each security. 

II. Delegation of Authority and Training 

Unless already specified by law, the District must select at least one Investment Officer to be 

responsible for the investment of the funds. This must be done by rule, order, ordinance, or 

resolution, as appropriate. Unless authorized by law, a person may not deposit, withdraw, 

transfer, or manage in any other manner the funds of the District. Therefore, it is recommended to 

designate as Investment Officer(s) those positions responsible for making investment decisions. 

Authority granted is effective until rescinded by the District, or until that person’s employment is 

terminated. 

Pursuant to Section 2256.005 Subsection (f) of the Act, RWRD designates the Chief Financial 

Officer as an Investment Officer, a primary individual who shall be involved in investment 

activities to perform and execute the duties as required by the general laws of the state of Texas 

under oversight by the Executive Director/CEO. 

Accordingly, the Investment Officer(s) of the District for the purposes of Section 2256.008 of the 

Act, and for the purposes of Section 49.1571 of the Texas Water Code shall receive at least 6 

hours of training relating to their responsibility under the Act within 12 months after assuming 

duties. In addition, the Investment Officer(s) are required to receive 4 hours of applicable training 

every two years. These sessions must be completed no less often than once every two fiscal years 

commencing September 30, 2011 and the financial officers shall receive not less than 4 hours of 

instruction relating to investment responsibilities. The training must include education in 

investment controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification and compliance 

with the Act. The investment training session shall be provided by an independent source 

approved by the investment committee. For purposes of this policy, an “independent source” 

from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional organization, an 

institute of higher learning or any other sponsor other than a business organization with whom the 

District may engage in an investment transaction. Thus, these independent sources will be 

training sessions sponsored by Government Treasurer's Organization of Texas, University of 

North Texas, Government Finance Officers Association of Texas. 

The Investment Officer(s) shall establish written procedures for the operation of the investment 

program, consistent with this Investment Policy and Strategies. Such procedures shall include any 

explicit delegation of authority to the individual(s) responsible for investment transactions. No 

person(s) may engage in investment transactions, except as provided under the terms of this 

Investment Policy and Strategies and the procedures established by the District. 

Page 4 of 12 

27



III. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

The Public Funds Investment Act includes ethics and conflicts of interest provisions. The 

Investment Officer(s) and employee(s) involved in the investment process shall refrain from 

personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 

which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. The Investment 

Officer(s) and employee(s) involved in the investment process shall sign annual statements 

agreeing to abide by this section of the Investment Policy and Strategies and affirming no known 

conflicts of interest. The Investment Officer(s) and employee(s) involved in the investment 

process must file a disclosure statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the District, if the 

Investment officer(s) or employee(s) has/have a personal business relationship with a business 

organization offering to engage in an investment transaction with the District. 

An investment officer or employee involved in the investment process has a personal business 

relationship with a business organization if: 

a. The investment officer owns 10% or more of the voting stock or shares of the 

business organization or owns $5,000 or more of the fair market value of the business 

organization; 

b. Funds received by the investment officer from the business organization exceed 10% 

of the investment officer’s gross income for the prior year; or 

c. The investment officer has acquired from the business organization during the prior 

year investments with a book value of $2,500 or more for the personal account of the 

investment officer. 

In addition, any investment officer or employee who is related within the second degree by 

affinity or consanguinity, as determined under Chapter 573 of the Texas Government Code, to an 

individual seeking to sell an investment to the District must file a statement disclosing that 

relationship with the Texas Ethics Commission and the District. 

IV. Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions (including pools) 

This Investment Policy and Strategies requires a formal competitive “request for proposals” 

process be used to select broker/dealers, financial institutions, bank depositories, and pools. As 

the policy is intended to endure, it does not mention specific financial institutions or bank 

depositories. Rather, it provides for a process that will screen out institutions that lack economic 

viability or whose past practices suggests that the safety of public capital would be impaired if 

transactions were directed to or through such financial institutions or bank depositories. 

A. When selecting broker/dealers, the District should look at: 

• Financial conditions, strength and capability to fulfill commitments; 

• Overall reputation with other dealers or investors; 

Page 5 of 12 
28



• Regulatory status of the dealer; and 

• Background and expertise of the individual representatives. 

• In addition, in order to use a broker/dealer, they have to be included on an 

annually reviewed authorized broker list for the District. 

B. When selecting financial institutions and bank depository institutions, the District should 

look at: 

• Types of collateral; 

• Security Interest Perfected; and 

• Rates. 

C. When selecting a local government investment pool, the law requires the pool to supply 

the following information to the District seeking to join the pool: 

a. investment transaction confirmations; and 

b. a monthly report that contains, at a minimum, the following information: 

▪ the types and percentage breakdown of securities in which the pool is 

invested; 

▪ the current average dollar-weighted maturity, based on the stated 

maturities of the pool; 

▪ the current percentage of the pool’s portfolio in investments that have 

stated maturities of more than one year; 

▪ the book value versus the market value of the pool’s portfolio, using 

amortized cost valuation; 

▪ the size of the pool; 

▪ the number of participants in the pool; 

▪ the custodian bank that is safekeeping the assets of the pool; 

▪ a listing of daily transaction activity of the district participating in the 

pool; 

▪ the yield and expense ratio of the pool; 

▪ the portfolio managers of the pool; and 

▪ any changes or addenda to the offering circular. 

V.  Certification Required from Broker/Dealers, Financial Institutions, Bank 

Depositories, and Pools 

A qualified representative from any firm offering to engage in investment transactions with the 

District is required to sign a written instrument that certifies that they have received and reviewed 

a written copy of the District’s Investment Policy and Strategies. The firm must acknowledge that 

it has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investments 

between the District and the firm that are not authorized by the District’s Investment 

Page 6 of 12 
29



Policy and Strategies. The District’s Investment Officer(s) may not transact business with a person 

or entity who has not delivered the required written instrument to the District. 

VI. Authorized and Suitable Investments 

The following is a list of the types of authorized investments by the District: 

• Certificates of Deposits; 

• Collateralized Mortgage Obligation, secured by the Full Faith and Credit 

of the Federal Government; 

• Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; 

• Freddie Mac CMO; 

• GMNA II Guaranteed Pass Thru; 

• Government National Mortgage Association Bonds; 

• Logic Investment Pool; 

• Lone State Investment Pool; 

• Money Market Accounts; 

• TexPool Participant Services; 

• TexPool Prime Participant Services; 

• TexStar Participant Services; and 

• U.S. Treasury Notes 

VII. Collateralization 

Required for certificates of deposit over the $100,000 insurance limit, for bank depository services 

over the $250,000 insurance limit, and for repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase 

agreements, this Investment Policy and Strategies addresses market valuation responsibility and 

timing, safekeeping by a third party and evidence of ownership. 

All banks' and savings and loan associations' deposits and investments of District funds shall be 

secured by pledged collateral with a market value equal to no less than 103 percent of the 

principal plus accrued interest less an amount insured by FDIC or NCUSIF. Evidence of proper 

collateralization in the form of original safekeeping receipts held in institution's trust department 

or at a third-party institution not affiliated with the bank or bank holding company will be 

maintained in the office of the Investment Officer(s) at all times. The Investment Officer(s) will 

approve and release all pledged collateral. Collateral will be reviewed monthly to assure the 

market value of the securities pledged exceeds investments and/or the related bank balances. The 

District shall request additional collateral in the event they deem that their deposits and 

investments are not sufficiently protected by the pledged collateral. 

Page 7 of 12 30



VIII. Safekeeping and Custody 

This Investment Policy and Strategies requires that all investments, with the exception of 

investment pools and mutual funds, must be settled on a delivery versus payment basis. It is 

strongly recommended to have investments safekept with a third-party institution, not the 

organization which sold the investment to the government district. 

All transactions must be executed with authorized security dealers and financial institutions on a 

delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. That is, funds shall not be wired or paid until verification 

has been made that the Trustee received the collateral. The collateral shall be held in the name of 

the District or held on behalf of the District. The Trustee's records shall assure the notation of the 

District's ownership of or explicit claim on the securities. The original copy of all safekeeping 

receipts shall be delivered to the District. Securities will be held by the District's safekeeping 

agent, which shall be selected through a competitive “request for proposal” process or that agent's 

representative in New York City, or in its account at the Federal Reserve Bank or FHLB. 

IX. Diversification 

Diversification should be conceptualized in terms of maturity, as well as instrument type and 

issuer. Thus, the diversification concept in an operating fund should include prohibition against 

over concentration in a specific maturity sector, as well as constraining the reliance on specific 

risky instruments and issuers. 

It is the Investment Policy and Strategies of the District to diversify its investment portfolios. 

The diversification will protect interest income from the volatility of interest rates and the 

avoidance of undue concentration of assets in a specific maturity sector; therefore, portfolio 

maturities shall be staggered. Securities shall also be selected and revised periodically by the 

District. In establishing specific diversification strategies, following general policies and 

constraints shall apply: 

1. Risk of market price volatility shall be controlled through maturity diversification and by 

controlling unacceptable maturity extensions and a mismatch of liabilities and assets. The 

maturity extension will be controlled by limiting the weighted average maturity of the 

entire portfolio to 365 days. All long-term maturities will be intended to cover long-term 

liabilities. In addition, five (5%) percent of the funds in the portfolio will be liquid at all 

times. 

2. The District shall establish strategies and guidelines for the percentage of the total 

portfolio that may be invested in U.S. Treasury Securities, federal agency 

instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, and insured/collateralized certificates of 

deposit and other securities or obligations. The District shall conduct a quarterly review 

of these guidelines and shall evaluate the probability of market and default risk in various 

investment sectors as part of its considerations. 

Page 8 of 12 
31



3. Risk of principal loss in the portfolio as a whole shall be minimized by diversifying 

investment types according to the following limitations. 

4. Investment Type % of Portfolio: 

o U.S. Treasury Notes/Bills 100% 

o U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities 100% 

o State of Texas Obligations & Agencies 15% 

o Local Government Investment Pools 50% 

o Local Government Obligations (AA) 10% 

o Repurchase Agreements 25% 

o Certificates of Deposit 100% 

o U.S. Government Money Market Funds 50% 

5. By Institution: 

o Repurchase Agreements — No more than 10% 

o All Other — No more than 40% 

o Investment Pools — No more than $10,000,000 

X. Maximum Maturities 

The maximum allowable stated maturity for an individual investment owned by the District is 

three (3) years except that no more than one million five hundred thousand dollars of the 

District’s unrestricted investments may have an average or expected maturity date of no more 

than ten (10) years and provided further that any investment held in connection with a reserve 

fund by any bond resolution may have a maturity that exceeds ten (10) years, so long as the 

expected maturity date of the investment does not exceed the maturity date of the bond for which 

the investment was pledged. 

XI. Internal Controls 

The District, in conjunction with its annual audit, shall perform a compliance audit of 

management controls on investments and adherence to the District’s Investment Policy and 

Strategies. The Investment Officer(s) shall establish a system of internal controls. The controls 

shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, and 

misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets, or imprudent 

actions by Investment Officer(s) or employees of the District. 

Examples of controls and managerial emphasis deemed important include the following: 

∞ All appropriate investment transactions settled delivery versus payment (DVP); 

Page 9 of 12 
32



' Investments safekept at a third party in the district’s name; 

' Annual compliance audit by independent auditor; 

' Custodian safekeeping receipts maintained; 

' Use of competitive bidding for investments; 

' Avoidance of bearer-form securities; 

' Documentation of investment bidding events; 

' Written confirmation of telephone transactions; 

' Reconcilement’s and comparisons of security receipts with the investment 

subsidiary records, including custodian bank; 

' Compliance with investment policies; 

' Verification of all interest income and security purchase and sell computations; 

' Control of collusion; 

' Separation of duties; 

' Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record-keeping; 

' Clear delegation of authority; 

' Accurate and timely reports; 

' Validation of investment maturity decisions with supporting cash flow data; 

' Adequate training and development of the Investment Officer(s); 

' Review of financial conditions of all brokers, dealers, and depository institutions 

(where practical); 

' Staying informed about market conditions, changes and trends that require 

adjustments in investment strategies; 

' Monitoring market values at least monthly; and/or 

' Written procedures documentation. 

XII. Performance Standards 

Performance standards provide a measure for determining the effectiveness of portfolio 

management. The Investment Officer(s) should design and review the District’s investment 

portfolio with the objective of obtaining a rate of return throughout budgetary economic cycles, 

commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow needs. 

XIII. Reporting 

Regular investment reports to the Board of Directors of the District provide necessary written 

communication regarding investment performance, risk analysis, adherence to policy provisions 

and other pertinent information. 

The following elements are required by this Investment Policy and Strategies and Texas State law 

concerning the District’s Investment Report: 

1. Must be prepared quarterly; 

2. Must include a report of investment transactions for all funds; 

Page 10 of 12 
33



3. Must describe the investment position; 

4. Must be prepared jointly and signed by all of the Investment Officer(s); 

5. Must contain a summary statement that provides the following information: 

• Beginning and ending market values for the period; 

• Additions and changes to the market value during the period; 

• Fully accrued interest for the period; and 

• List by type of asset and fund type invested; 

7. Must list the book and market value for each investment at the beginning and 

ending of the reporting period; 

8. Must list the maturity date (for all investments that have one) for each individual 

investment; 

9. Must assign each investment to the account or fund or pooled group fund for 

which it was acquired; and 

10. Must provide a statement that the investment portfolio is in compliance with 

relevant provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act and with the District’s 

Investment Policy and Strategies. 

XIV. Investment Policy and Strategies Adoption and Annual Review 

The Board of Directors of the District shall review its Investment Policy and Strategies, not less 

than annually, and authorize an official action (i.e. resolution) stating that this Investment Policy 

and Strategies has been reviewed and approved. 

Page 11 of 12 
34



Riverbend Water Resource District  

Investment Policy and Strategies 

Certification Required from Broker/Dealers, Financial Institutions,  

Bank Depositories, and Pools 

I,  ___________________________________________________ , am a qualified representative 

from an entity offering to engage in investment transactions with the Riverbend Water Resources 

District (the “District”) and certify that I have received and reviewed a written copy of the 

District’s Investment Policy and Strategies; I further acknowledge that the entity which I 

represent has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to preclude 

investments between the District and the entity that are not authorized by the District’s 

Investment Policy and Strategies. 

Entity Name Signature of Representative 

Entity Address Printed Name of Representative 

Entity Address Email Contact of Representative 

Entity Phone 

SUBSCRIBED AND ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME by the said Declarant,  

 ________________________________________ on this _____ day of ____________20___. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Page 12 of 12 
35



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

Presentation of Retail Rate Study 

by NewGen Strategies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT
WATER AND WASTEWATER RETAIL RATE STUDY

March 13, 2020

37



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

KEY ISSUES/GOALS

• Riverbend Water Resources District (the District) provides retail and wholesale 
water service, and retail wastewater service

̶ Retail: Approximately 70 Customers + Red River Army Depot (RRAD)

• The Project Team was tasked with completing a retail water and wastewater rate 
study

̶ Excluding costs and rates associated with RRAD (the Army)

̶ Pretreatment rates were not evaluated at this time

̶ Facility Charge was not evaluated as this was determined to be driven primarily by debt and 
assessed internally by the District on an annual basis

• Army % of total water and wastewater costs driven by % of Water Production
̶ Set Annually

2

38



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

SCENARIOS EVALUATED
BASED ON ARMY % OF TOTAL WATER PRODUCTION

• Due to fluctuations in Army costs based on % of total water production, the 
Project Team evaluated rates under the following three scenarios

1. 2020 %: 2020 Army % of Water Production per RRAD November 2019 Invoice #2815 

2. 5-Year Average: Five-year average of Army % of Total Water Production Costs (2016 – 2020)

3. Breakeven: Estimated Army % of Water Production where the District is projected to 
recover costs under current rates by FY 2024

3

Army % of 
Total Production

Water Wastewater

Scenario 1: 2020 % 97.50% 75.61%

Scenario 2: 5-Year Avg % 95.59% 84.26%

Scenario 3: Breakeven % 94.43% 83.80%

39



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RETAIL REVENUE REQUIREMENT – FY 2020
WATER

4

Personnel
$333,050 

Supplies & 
Maintenance

$546,926 

Contractual 
Services
$20,000 

Overhead
$159,599 

Admin Fee
$59,052 FY 2020 Scenario 11 Scenario 22 Scenario 33

Army % 97.50% 95.59% 94.43%

Less: Army Costs ($1,090,716) ($1,069,302) ($1,059,320)

Less: Non-Rate Rev ($2,550) ($2,550) ($2,550)

Retail Rev Rqmt $25,362 $46,776 $59,758

FY 2020

Total Expenditures $1,118,627

1: 2020 Army % of Water Production per RRAD November 2019 Invoice #2815 
2: Five-year average of Army % of Total Water Production Costs (2016 – 2020)
3: Estimated Army % of Water Production where the District is projected to recover costs under current rates by FY 2024

40



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

PROJECTED REVENUE SUFFICIENCY UNDER CURRENT RATES
WATER

• The District is projected to fully recover costs attributable to retail customers based on all three estimates of the Army’s % 
of total Water Production

• The District will not need to adjust Water rates through FY 2024 provided the Army % of Total Production is greater than 
94.43%

5

 $50,000

 $55,000

 $60,000

 $65,000

 $70,000

 $75,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 33

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

 $45,000

 $55,000

 $65,000

 $75,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 22

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 11

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

1: 2020 Army % of Water Production per RRAD November 2019 Invoice #2815 
2: Five-year average of Army % of Total Water Production Costs (2016 – 2020)
3: Estimated Army % of Water Production where the District is projected to recover costs under current rates by FY 2024

41



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RETAIL REVENUE REQUIREMENT – FY 2020
WASTEWATER

6

FY 2020 Scenario 11 Scenario 22 Scenario 33

Army % 75.61% 84.26% 83.80%

Less: Army Costs ($977,229) ($1,089,025) ($1,083,117)

Less: Non-Rate Rev ($-) ($-) ($-)

Retail Rev Rqmt $315,274 $203,478 $209,385

FY 2020

Total Expenditures $1,292,502

1: 2020 Army % of Water Production per RRAD November 2019 Invoice #2815 
2: Five-year average of Army % of Total Water Production Costs (2016 – 2020)
3: Estimated Army % of Water Production where the District is projected to recover costs under current rates by FY 2024

Personnel
$361,701 

Supplies & 
Maintenance

$641,700 

Contractual 
Services
$20,000 

Overhead
$173,361 

Admin Fee
$95,741 

42



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

PROJECTED REVENUE SUFFICIENCY UNDER CURRENT RATES
WASTEWATER

• Scenario 1: The District is not projected to fully recover costs attributable to retail customers based on the Army’s % of 
total Water Production in 2020

• The District will not need to adjust Wastewater rates through FY 2024 provided the Army % of Total Production is greater 
than 83.80%

7

1: 2020 Army % of Water Production per RRAD November 2019 Invoice #2815 
2: Five-year average of Army % of Total Water Production Costs (2016 – 2020)
3: Estimated Army % of Water Production where the District is projected to recover costs under current rates by FY 2024

 $190,000
 $200,000
 $210,000
 $220,000
 $230,000
 $240,000
 $250,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 33

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

 $180,000

 $200,000

 $220,000

 $240,000

 $260,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 22

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Scenario 11

Proj Rev Rev Rqmt

43



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RATE STABILIZATION FUND

• Mechanism setup by the District to insulate the Water and 
Wastewater fund from large fluctuations of revenue from the Army

̶ Due to fluctuations in Army Water Production

• Fund will mitigate future rate increases by acting as a balancing 
reserve for the Water and Wastewater fund

̶ Revenue Surplus: Transfer to Rate Stabilization Fund

̶ Revenue Deficiency: Transfer from Rate Stabilization Fund 

8

44



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RATE STABLIZATION FUND

9

Water and 
Wastewater 

Fund

Rate 
Stabilization

Fund

Combined Over Recovery

Combined Under Recovery

Transfer from Rate 
Stabilization when 

Revenues 
Insufficient

Revenue 
Sufficiency Driven 

by Army % of 
Production

Transfer to Rate 
Stabilization with 
Revenue Surplus

Balancing Fund to 
Counter Army 

Production  
Fluctuation

45



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RAW WATER

• As part of retail rate study, NewGen was requested to determine an 
appropriate retail raw water rate reflective of the District’s regional 
water supply project planning

• Industrial customers may have need for a raw water source

̶ Rate should be competitive and reflective of what other regional participants 
pay

10

46



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RAW WATER

11

Capital Projects Cost ($) %

Raw (Phase 1A)1 $ 82,668,811 52.4%

Treated (Phase 1B)1 74,904,000 47.6%

Total $ 157,572,811 100.0%

Raw Water Calculation Cost ($) %

Regional Rate $1.50

Less: Local Water Loss (20%) (0.30)

Adjusted Regional Rate $1.20

Raw $0.63 $1.20 * 52.4%

Less: Reservoir/Plant Loss (0.01) 2.0%

Adjusted Raw Water Rate $0.64 $0.63/(1-2%)
1: Project classification and estimates per AECOM and presented in slides 15-16 of NewGen’s Capital Presentation to the District on August 22, 2018

47



NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

RECOMMENDATIONS

• No retail rate action recommended at this time

̶ Continually monitor financial performance of the District

• Implement Rate Stabilization fund to hedge against fluctuations in 
Army Production

̶ Fund will mitigate future rate increases by acting as a balancing reserve for 
the Water and Wastewater fund

12

48



13NEWGEN STRATEGIES AND SOLUTIONS, LLC

QUESTIONS
Chris Ekrut

Chief Financial Officer

Director, Environmental 
Practice

Office: (972) 232-2234 

cekrut@newgenstrategies.net

Michael Sommerdorf

Senior Consultant

Office: (972) 704-1655

msommerdorf@newgenstrategies.net

13

49

mailto:cekrut@newgenstrategies.net
mailto:msommerdorf@newgenstrategies.net


REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. D. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-03 

TML Health Benefits Agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200422-03 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT WITH TML HEALTH BENEFITS POOL TO PROVIDE EMPLOYEE 

HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District currently has an interlocal agreement 

with TML Health Benefits Pool for a health benefits plan including health insurance, life 

insurance, health reimbursement accounts and retirement reimbursement accounts for district 

employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a continued need for health and life 

insurance benefits to support the operation and management of its wet utilities and TML Health 

Benefits Pool is fully qualified to provide and perform these needed services; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is hereby authorized to execute an interlocal agreement(s) with TML Health Benefits Pool to 

continue to provide health and life insurance benefit services for Riverbend Water Resources 

District. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2020 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

 

Attached: TML Health Benefits Pool Agreement  

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. E. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-04 

Amended Budgets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



 
  

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200422-04 

 

ADOPTING THE FY 2019-2020 AMENDED ADMINISTRATIVE MEMBER FUND 

BUDGET AND 2019-2020 AMENDED WET UTILITIES BUDGET OF THE 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District first adopted the FY 2019-2020 

Administrative Member Fund Budget and the FY 2019-2020 Wet Utilities Budget on September 

25, 2019; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District deems it necessary to revise the FY 

2019-2020 Administrative Member Fund Budget and FY 2019-2020 Wet Utilities Budget to 

incorporate necessary adjustments to certain line items; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 

Riverbend Water Resources District hereby adopts the 2019-2020 Amended Administrative 

Member Fund Budget and the 2019-2020 Amended Wet Utilities Fund Budget of the Riverbend 

Water Resources District. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2020 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Marshal Wood, Secretary 

 

Attached: FY 2019-2020 Amended Administrative Member Fund Budget  

 FY 2019-2020 Amended Wet Utilities Fund Budget 

83



Administrative Fund

Account Admin

Member

 Services

Military Affairs Increased expense (6,500)

Hooks Wastewater Services Decreased revenue (6,000)

Maud Services Decreased revenue (25,000)

Labor wages for Hooks Decreased expense 5,400

Labor wages for Maud Decreased expense 8,500

Mileage Decreased expense 3,100

Analyticals Decreased expense 400

Repairs Decreased expense 3,500

Equipment Decreased expense 2,500

Wet Utilities Fund

Account Water Wastewater

Industrial

Wastewater

Infrastructure

Services

Cell phone Increased expense 800 890 910

Other Employment Costs Decreased expense (800) (890) (910)

Trash Increased expense 7,000

Grit Increased expense 3,000

Drying Bed Sludge Decreased expense (10,000)

Phosphate Increased expense 5,000

Chrome Decreased expense (5,000)

IS Equipment Rental Decrease expense (reimbursement) (2,500)

IS Analyticals Decrease expense (reimbursement) (400)

IS Labor Wages Decrease expense (reimbursement) (8,500)

IS Repairs Decrease expense (reimbursement) (3,500)

IS Mileage Reimbursement Decrease expense (reimbursement) (3,100)

Infrastructure Services Admin Fee Increase revenue 2,160

Member Services revenue and expenses have been moved from the Adminstrative Fund to the Wet Utilities Fund.  All reimbursed expenses 

for infrastucture services will appear as credits (reductions) to appropriate expense accounts.  Admin fees (12% of total expense) will be 

recorded as income.

Riverbend Water Resources District

Proposed Budget Amendments

April 22, 2020

84



Budget Approved Amended

18-19 19-20 19-20

Revenue 3,479,249 3,541,962 3,541,962

Expenses

Water 1,172,979 1,305,851 1,312,851

Wastewater 1,380,190 1,467,351 1,460,351

Industrial Wastewater 1,167,920 1,288,011 1,288,011

Infrastructure Services 0 0 (18,000)

Total Expenses 3,721,088 4,061,213 4,061,213

Subtotal Revenue (Expenses) (241,839) (519,251) (519,251)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 627,419 621,223 623,383

Total Revenue (Expenses) 385,580 101,972 104,132

Debt Service for 2020 = $1,115,449

Riverbend Water Resources District

WET Utilities - Proposed Amended Budget - Summary

FY2019-20

85



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

41000 · Army Revenue

41020 · Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 647,423 817,326 817,326

41025 · Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg 301,187 273,660 273,660

Total 41000 · Army Revenue 948,610 1,090,986 1,090,986

42000 · Residential & Commercial Revenu

42020 · Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 123,742 53,500 53,500

42025 · Res & Comm Rev-Water Supply Chg 0 0 0

42030 · Res & Comm Rev-Backflow Calibra 2,550 2,550 2,550

Total 42000 · Residential & Commercial Revenu 126,292 56,050 56,050

Total Income 1,074,902 1,147,036 1,147,036

Cost of Goods Sold

51000 · Labor

50100 · Salaries & Wages

50100 · Salaries & Wages - Other 189,805 215,822 215,822

Total 50100 · Salaries & Wages 189,805 215,822 215,822

50110 · Health Insurance 37,692 41,580 41,580

50120 · Pension 23,726 26,978 26,978

50130 · Payroll Taxes 16,335 18,574 18,574

50150 · Unemployment Obligations 4,056 2,956 2,956

50200 · Cell Phone 3,500 800 1,600 800

50210 · Workers Compensation 5,279 5,596 5,596

50230 · Training, Travel, & Licences 5,250 6,000 6,000

50240 · Uniforms 2,625 3,000 3,000

50250 · Other Employment Costs 1,925 2,200 1,400 (800)

50260 · Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 500

50300 · Temporary Labor 12,000 12,000 12,000

51000 · Labor - Other 0 0 0

Total 51000 · Labor 302,693 336,006 336,006

52000 · Analyticals 10,000 10,000 10,000

53000 · Repairs

53010 · Plant

53010 · Plant - Other 0 12,000 12,000

Total 53010 · Plant 0 12,000 12,000

53020 · Lines

53020 · Lines - Other 50,000 102,500 102,500

Total 53020 · Lines 50,000 102,500 102,500

53030 · Facilities-Other

53030 · Facilities-Other - Other 20,000 17,500 17,500

Riverbend Water Resources District

Wet Utilities - Water - Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

86



Total 53030 · Facilities-Other 20,000 17,500 17,500

Total 53000 · Repairs 70,000 132,000 132,000

53200 · Insurance - Operations 13,000 13,000 13,000

54100 · Other Maintenance 5,000 5,000 5,000

54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel

54210 · Equipment Maint & Repairs 10,000 10,000 10,000

54220 · Fuel 5,000 5,000 5,000

Total 54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel 15,000 15,000 15,000

54300 · Equipment Rental 5,000 5,000 5,000

55100 · Materials

55110 · Chemicals 6,000 6,000 6,000

55120 · Other Materials 500 500 500

Total 55100 · Materials 6,500 6,500 6,500

55200 · Supplies

55210 · Small Tools & Equipment 3,000 3,000 3,000

55220 · Sampling 3,000 3,000 3,000

55230 · Cleaning 0 0 0

55240 · Safety 3,000 3,000 3,000

55250 · Other Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,000

Total 55200 · Supplies 10,000 10,000 10,000

56000 · Permits 15,000 15,000 15,000

57000 · Utilities 15,000 52,000 52,000

58050 · Trash 0 0 7,000 7,000

58500 · Water Purchase Cost 321,426 280,663 280,663

59000 · Consulting

17GIS04 · GIS Mapping 17,000 0 0

59000 · Consulting - Other 3,000 20,000 20,000

Total 59000 · Consulting 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total COGS 808,619 900,169 907,169

Gross Profit 266,283 246,867 239,867

Net Ordinary Income 266,283 246,867 239,867

Total Other Expense 0 0 0

Net Other Income 0 0 0

Net Income 266,283 246,867 239,867

Overhead (158,860) (160,528) (160,528)

107,423 86,339 79,339

Depreciation 205,500 245,154 245,154

87



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

41000 · Army Revenue

41020 · Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,014,689 977,229 977,229

41025 · Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg 0 20,414 20,414

Total 41000 · Army Revenue 1,014,689 997,643 997,643

42000 · Residential & Commercial Revenu

42020 · Res & Comm Rev-Volumetric Charg 293,375 301,000 301,000

Total 42000 · Residential & Commercial Revenu 293,375 301,000 301,000

47000 · Miscellanous Revenue

Total Income 1,308,064 1,298,643 1,298,643

Cost of Goods Sold

51000 · Labor

50100 · Salaries & Wages

50100 · Salaries & Wages - Other 220,349 234,237 234,237

Total 50100 · Salaries & Wages 220,349 234,237 234,237

50110 · Health Insurance 46,307 46,258 46,258

50120 · Pension 27,544 29,280 29,280

50130 · Payroll Taxes 18,964 20,159 20,159

50150 · Unemployment Obligations 4,983 3,288 3,288

50200 · Cell Phone 4,300 890 1,780 890

50210 · Workers Compensation 6,450 5,916 5,916

50230 · Training, Travel, & Licences 6,450 6,675 6,675

50240 · Uniforms 3,225 3,338 3,338

50250 · Other Employment Costs 2,605 2,448 1,558 (890)

50260 · Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 500

50300 · Temporary Labor 12,000 12,000 12,000

51000 · Labor - Other 0 0 0

Total 51000 · Labor 353,677 364,989 364,989

52000 · Analyticals 95,000 95,000 95,000

53000 · Repairs

53010 · Plant

18WW015 · Drying Bed Rehab 21,500 0 0

53010 · Plant - Other 38,500 160,000 160,000

Total 53010 · Plant 60,000 160,000 160,000

53020 · Lines

53020 · Lines - Other 35,000 60,000 60,000

Total 53020 · Lines 35,000 60,000 60,000

53030 · Facilities-Other

53030 · Facilities-Other - Other 29,000 29,000 29,000

Riverbend Water Resources District

Wet Utilities - Wastewater - Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

88



Total 53030 · Facilities-Other 29,000 29,000 29,000

Total 53000 · Repairs 124,000 249,000 249,000

53200 · Insurance - Operations 13,000 13,000 13,000

54100 · Other Maintenance 5,000 5,000 5,000

54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel

54210 · Equipment Maint & Repairs 8,000 8,000 8,000

54220 · Fuel 9,000 9,000 9,000

Total 54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel 17,000 17,000 17,000

54300 · Equipment Rental 4,000 4,000 4,000

55100 · Materials

55110 · Chemicals 65,000 65,000 65,000

55120 · Other Materials 1,500 1,500 1,500

Total 55100 · Materials 66,500 66,500 66,500

55200 · Supplies

55210 · Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 8,000 8,000

55220 · Sampling 6,000 6,000 6,000

55230 · Cleaning 1,200 1,200 1,200

55240 · Safety 5,000 5,000 5,000

55250 · Other Supplies 5,000 5,000 5,000

Total 55200 · Supplies 25,200 25,200 25,200

56000 · Permits 20,000 20,000 20,000

57000 · Utilities 90,000 90,000 90,000

58000 · Waste Disposal

58020 · Grit 0 0 3,000 3,000

58030 · Drying Bed Sludge 30,000 30,000 20,000 (10,000)

Total 58000 · Waste Disposal 30,000 30,000 23,000

58500 · Water Purchase Cost 31,000 27,000 27,000

59000 · Consulting

17GIS04 · GIS Mapping 17,000 0 0

59000 · Consulting - Other 3,000 20,000 20,000

Total 59000 · Consulting 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total COGS 894,377 1,026,689 1,019,689

Gross Profit 413,687 271,954 278,954

Expense

Net Ordinary Income 413,687 271,954 278,954

Net Income 413,687 271,954 278,954

Overhead (211,813) (174,370) (174,370)

201,874 97,584 104,584

Depreciation 274,000 266,292 266,292

89



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

41000 · Army Revenue

41020 · Army Revenue-Volumetric Charge 1,031,728 1,096,283 1,096,283

41025 · Army Revenue-Water Supply Charg 0 0 0

41000 · Army Revenue - Other 0 0 0

Total 41000 · Army Revenue 1,031,728 1,096,283 1,096,283

Total Income 1,031,728 1,096,283 1,096,283

Cost of Goods Sold

51000 · Labor

50100 · Salaries & Wages

50100 · Salaries & Wages - Other 213,030 235,511 235,511

Total 50100 · Salaries & Wages 213,030 235,511 235,511

50110 · Health Insurance 45,230 47,298 47,298

50120 · Pension 26,629 29,439 29,439

50130 · Payroll Taxes 18,334 20,269 20,269

50150 · Unemployment Obligations 4,867 3,362 3,362

50200 · Cell Phone 4,200 910 1,820 910

50210 · Workers Compensation 6,300 6,076 6,076

50230 · Training, Travel, & Licences 6,300 6,825 6,825

50240 · Uniforms 3,150 3,413 3,413

50250 · Other Employment Costs 2,520 2,503 1,593 (910)

50260 · Mileage for Call Outs 500 500 500

50300 · Temporary Labor 12,000 12,000 12,000

51000 · Labor - Other 0 0 0

Total 51000 · Labor 343,060 368,106 368,106

52000 · Analyticals 45,000 45,000 45,000

53000 · Repairs

53010 · Plant

53010 · Plant - Other 65,000 80,000 80,000

Total 53010 · Plant 65,000 80,000 80,000

53020 · Lines

53020 · Lines - Other 10,000 10,000 10,000

Total 53020 · Lines 10,000 10,000 10,000

53030 · Facilities-Other

53030 · Facilities-Other - Other 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total 53030 · Facilities-Other 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total 53000 · Repairs 95,000 110,000 110,000

53200 · Insurance - Operations 13,000 13,000 13,000

54100 · Other Maintenance 2,000 2,000 2,000

54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel

Riverbend Water Resources District

Wet Utilities -Industrial Wastewater -  Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

90



54210 · Equipment Maint & Repairs 7,000 7,000 7,000

54220 · Fuel 4,000 4,000 4,000

Total 54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel 11,000 11,000 11,000

54300 · Equipment Rental 2,000 2,000 2,000

55100 · Materials

55110 · Chemicals 160,000 160,000 160,000

Total 55100 · Materials 160,000 160,000 160,000

55200 · Supplies

55210 · Small Tools & Equipment 8,000 8,000 8,000

55220 · Sampling 2,000 2,000 2,000

55230 · Cleaning 1,000 1,000 1,000

55240 · Safety 4,500 4,500 4,500

55250 · Other Supplies 1,000 1,000 1,000

Total 55200 · Supplies 16,500 16,500 16,500

56000 · Permits 20,000 20,000 20,000

57000 · Utilities 46,000 46,000 46,000

58000 · Waste Disposal

58010 · Phosphate 15,000 15,000 20,000 5,000

58020 · Grit 0 0 0

58030 · Drying Bed Sludge 0 0 0

58040 · Chrome 15,000 15,000 10,000 (5,000)

58000 · Waste Disposal - Other 0 0 0

Total 58000 · Waste Disposal 30,000 30,000 30,000

59000 · Consulting

17GIS04 · GIS Mapping 17,000 0 0

59000 · Consulting - Other 3,000 20,000 20,000

Total 59000 · Consulting 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total COGS 803,560 843,606 843,606

Gross Profit 228,168 252,677 252,677

Net Income 228,168 252,677 252,677

Overhead -158,860 -175,851 -175,851

69,308 76,826 76,826

Depreciation 205,500 268,554 268,554

91



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Expense

60110 · Salaries & Wages

60110 · Salaries & Wages - Other 390,812 407,678 407,678

Total 60110 · Salaries & Wages 390,812 407,678 407,678

60120 · Health Insurance 53,846 41,580 41,580

60130 · Pension 48,851 50,960 50,960

60140 · Payroll Taxes 33,634 35,086 35,086

60150 · Unemployment Obligations 5,795 2,956 2,956

60210 · Cell Phone 5,200 1,800 1,800

60220 · Workers Compensation 676 394 394

60230 · Training, Travel, & Licenses 7,500 8,000 8,000

60240 · Uniforms 2,500 2,000 2,000

60250 · Other Employment Costs 8,000 7,950 7,950

60300 · Temporaty Labor 0 0 0

61200 · Travel 5,600 5,600 5,600

61310 · Meetings 3,000 3,000 3,000

63200 · Insurance 1,000 1,000 1,000

65010 · Auditing 23,000 23,000 23,000

65020 · Accounting 0 0 0

65210 · Legal 25,000 25,000 25,000

66000 · Payroll Expenses 0 0 0

66010 · Computer, Reprod & Maint 17,000 17,000 17,000

66020 · Office Supplies 6,000 6,000 6,000

66030 · Postage 2,600 2,600 2,600

66110 · Utilities-OH 13,000 13,000 13,000

66130 · Building Maintenance 7,000 7,000 7,000

66210 · Licenses & Fees 300 300 300

66310 · Advertising 2,000 2,000 2,000

66800 · Miscellaneous Fees

66810 · Wright Express Fees 240 240 240

66800 · Miscellaneous Fees - Other 1,460 1,460 1,460

Total 66800 · Miscellaneous Fees 1,700 1,700 1,700

71000 · Depreciation Expense 685,000 780,000 780,000

Total Expense 1,349,014 1,445,604 1,445,604

Net Ordinary Income (1,349,014) (1,445,604) (1,445,604)

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

83000 · Facility Charges

Riverbend Water Resources District

Wet Utilities - Overhead - Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

92



41015 · Army Revenue-Facility Charge 2 569,277 550,874 550,874

41010 · Army Revenue-Facility Charge 1 660,854 526,557 526,557

42010 · Res & Comm Rev-Facility Charge1 132,000 166,500 166,500

Total 83000 · Facility Charges 1,362,131 1,243,931 1,243,931

80000 · Interest Income 52,000 52,000 52,000

81000 · Project Admin Fees

81000 · Project Admin Fees - Other 124,000 37,000 37,000

Total 81000 · Project Admin Fees 124,000 37,000 37,000

82000 · 40% Salary Billback 134,482 154,855 154,855

Total Other Income 1,672,613 1,487,786 1,487,786

Other Expense

66400 · Bonds A&B Interest Expense 408,271 405,449 405,449

66500 · Franchise Fees to TAC 102,441 106,259 106,259

66850 · Transfer to Admin Fund 400,000 200,000 200,000

66900 · Regional Planning/$1M Debt Svc 0 0 0

Total Other Expense 910,712 711,708 711,708

Net Other Income 761,901 776,078 776,078

Net Income (587,113) (669,526) (669,526)

Overhead to be allocated (529,532) (510,749) (510,749)

(Expenses before Non-operating revenues and expenses)

Water 30% (158,860) (160,528) (160,528)

Wastewater 40% (211,813) (174,370) (174,370)

Industrial Wastewater 30% (158,860) (175,851) (175,851)

(529,532) (510,749) (510,749)

Depreciation Expense to be allocated

Water 30% 205,500 245,154 245,154

Wastewater 40% 274,000 266,292 266,292

Industrial Wastewater 30% 205,500 268,554 268,554

685,000 780,000 780,000

93



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Cost of Goods Sold

54350 · IS Equipment Rental 0.00 0.00 (2,500) (2,500)

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

52100 · IS Analyticals 0.00 0.00 (400) (400)

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

50100 · Salaries & Wages

59805 · IS Labor Wages 0.00 0.00 (8,500) (8,500)

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

Total 50100 · Salaries & Wages 0.00 0.00 (8,500)

53000 · Repairs

53020 · Lines 0.00 0.00 0

53040 · IS Repairs 0.00 0.00 (3,500) (3,500)

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

Total 53000 · Repairs 0.00 0.00 (3,500)

54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel

54230 · IS Mileage Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 (3,100) (3,100)

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

Total 54200 · Equipment Maint, Repair & Fuel0.00 0.00 (3,100)

Total COGS 0.00 0.00 (18,000)

Other Income

81100 · Infrastructure Serv. Admin Fee 0.00 0.00 2,160 2,160

Expense Reimbursement (formerly 

Member Services Income)

Total Other Income 0.00 0.00 2,160

Net Income 20,160

Riverbend Water Resources District

Wet Utilities - Infrastructure Services - Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

94



Budget Approved Amended

18-19 19-20 19-20

Revenue 253,650 207,000 176,000

Expenses 919,967 724,790 707,890

Subtotal Revenue (Expenses) (666,317) (517,790) (531,890)

Other Revenue (Expenses) 743,000 526,000 531,890

Total Revenue (Expenses) 76,683 8,210 0

Riverbend Water Resources District

Admin Fund - Proposed Amended Budget - Summary

FY2019-20

95



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

41000 · Riverbend Fee 195,000 176,000 176,000

44000 · SRBA Funding Agreement 0 0 0

45000 · WET Revenues (Current Year) 0 0 0

Total Income 195,000 176,000 176,000

Gross Profit 195,000 176,000 176,000

Expense

59000 · Consulting

59010 · Cross Oak 60,000 60,000 60,000

59020 · Larry Meyers 120,000 120,000 120,000

59030 · Misc. 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total 59000 · Consulting 200,000 200,000 200,000

60110 · Salary & Benefits Bill Back@40% 134,482 155,855 155,855

60230 · Conferences & Seminars

60231 · RRVA Conference 500 500 500

60230 · Conferences & Seminars - Other 4,200 4,200 4,200

Total 60230 · Conferences & Seminars 4,700 4,700 4,700

61000 · Dues & Memberships

61010 · Texas Water Foundation 500 500 500

61020 · AWWA 250 250 250

61030 · Chamber of Commerce 360 360 360

61040 · TRWA 400 400 400

61050 · TWCA 375 375 375

61060 · RRVA 250 250 250

61070 · Leadership Texarkana 600 600 600

61000 · Dues & Memberships - Other 5,000 5,000 5,000

Total 61000 · Dues & Memberships 7,735 7,735 7,735

61200 · Travel Expenses 18,000 18,000 18,000

61310 · Meeting Expense 8,900 6,000 6,000

64000 · Community Relations/PR 10,000 8,000 8,000

64010 · Military Affairs 12,000 10,000 16,500 6,500 To maintain commitment

65000 · Accounting & Audit  Fees

65010 · Audit Fees 4,500 4,500 4,500

65020 · Monthly Accounting 5,000 0 0

Total 65000 · Accounting & Audit  Fees 9,500 4,500 4,500

65000 · Bank Service Fees

65210 · Legal & Professional Fees 27,500 27,500 27,500

66000 · Office Expense & Supplies 3,300 3,300 3,300

66110 · Utilities (Phone, Internet, Electric)

66400 · Subscriptions 400 400 400

66500 · Web Design & Maintenance 4,000 4,000 4,000

67000 · Engineering Services

67100 · Engineering Misc 45,000 50,000 50,000

67300 · Region D Planning 40,000 50,000 50,000

67400 · RWMP Projects 60,000 50,000 50,000

Total 67000 · Engineering Services 145,000 150,000 150,000

74000 · Advertising 1,400 1,400 1,400

90000 · Special Projects-Expenses

90200 · Water Availability Model 128,000 0 0

90300 · Hooks Feasibility Study 40,000 0 0

90500 · Volumetric/Sedimentation Study 50,000 0 0

90600 · Misc. Special Projects 74,000 100,000 100,000

Total 90000 · Special Projects-Expenses 292,000 100,000 100,000

Total Expense 878,917 701,390 707,890

Net Ordinary Income (683,917) (525,390) (531,890)

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Use of Planning Funds - TWDB/BOK 0 0 0

71000 · Transfer from Wet Utilities 400,000 200,000 200,000

72000 · Use of Prior Year Equity 343,000 326,000 331,890 5,890 To balance budget

Total Other Income 743,000 526,000 531,890

Net Other Income 743,000 526,000 531,890

59,083 610 0

Riverbend Water Resources District

Admin Fund - Administrative - Proposed Amended Budget

FY2019-20

96



Budget Approved Amended Increase/

18-19 19-20 19-20 (Decrease)

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

47000 · Member Services Revenue

HOOKSWW · Hooks Wastewater Services 33,650 6,000 0 (6,000) Removed

MAUDSVC · MAUD Services 25,000 25,000 0 (25,000)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

Total 47000 · Member Services Revenue 58,650 31,000 0

Total Income 58,650 31,000 0

Gross Profit 58,650 31,000 0

Expense

51000 · Labor

50100 · Salaries & Wages

59605 · Labor Wages for Hooks WW Serv 12,650 5,400 0 (5,400) Removed

59705 · Labor Wages for Maud Services 8,500 8,500 0 (8,500)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

Total 50100 · Salaries & Wages 21,150 13,900 0

Total 51000 · Labor 21,150 13,900 0

59600 · Hooks Wastewater Services

59601 · Mileage/Hooks WW Serv 3,000 0 0

59602 · Analyticals/Sampling 400 0 0

59603 · Repairs 6,000 0 0

59604 · Equipment for Hooks WW Svc 1,000 0 0

59606 · Sludge Disposal

Total 59600 · Hooks Wastewater Services 10,400 0 0

59700 · Maud Services

59701 · Mileage/Maud Servies 3,100 3,100 0 (3,100)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

59702 · Analyticals/Sampling 400 400 0 (400)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

59703 · Repairs 3,500 3,500 0 (3,500)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

59704 · Equipment for Maud Serv 2,500 2,500 0 (2,500)

Moved activity to Wet Utility 

Fund

Total 59700 · Maud Services 9,500 9,500 0

Total Expense 41,050 23,400 0

Net Ordinary Income 17,600 7,600 0

Other Income/Expense

Net Income 17,600 7,600 0

Riverbend Water Resources District

Admin Fund - Member Services - Proposed Amended Budget 

FY2019-20

97



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. F. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-05 

Second Quarter Financials 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 
 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200422-05 

 

APPROVING THE 2nd QUARTER FY 2019-2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors accepts and 

approves quarterly financial statements, which provide for the fiduciary guidance of Riverbend 

Water Resources funds; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources 

District accepts and approves the 2nd Quarter FY 2019-2020 financials. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2020 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

 

Attached: Financial Statements for Riverbend Water Resources District for the 2nd Quarter of 

FY 2019-2020. 

99



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

March 31, 2020

Administrative Wet Utilities

Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets: 

     Cash 149,574$             1,037,455$          1,187,029$        

     Accounts receivable 16,018 396,291 412,309

     Due from other fund 3,637 - 3,637

     Restricted assets:

          Cash restricted for bond debt reserves - 1,787,663 1,787,663

          Cash restricted for construction - bond proceeds - 475,702 475,702

          Cash restricted for operations - 903,664 903,664

Prepaid expenses - 5,048 5,048

Inventory - 81,395 81,395

          Total current assets 169,229 4,687,218 4,856,447

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

     Computer equipment 69 - 69

     Equipment - 290,869 290,869

     Utility system - 16,133,674 16,133,674

     Intangible assets - 229,828 229,828

     Construction in progress - 611,296 611,296

     Total capital assets 69 17,265,667 17,265,736

          Total noncurrent assets 69 17,265,667 17,265,736

TOTAL ASSETS 169,298 21,952,885 22,122,183

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

     Accounts payable 649 100,566 101,215

     Payroll liabilities - 14,495 14,495

     Due to other fund - 3,637 3,637

     Accrued interest payable - 178,934 178,934

     Accrued compensated absences - current - 19,489 19,489

     Revenue bonds payable - current - 740,000 740,000

          Total current liabilities 649 1,057,121 1,057,770

Noncurrent liabilities:

     Accrued compensated absences - long term - 30,231 30,231

     Revenue bonds payable - long term - 8,595,000 8,595,000

          Total noncurrent liabilities - 8,625,231 8,625,231

TOTAL LIABILITES 649 9,682,352 9,683,001

NET POSITION

     Net investment in capital assets 69 8,929,170 8,929,239

     Restricted for bond reserves - 1,791,327 1,791,327

     Restricted for construction - 475,702 475,702

     Unrestricted 169,165 1,072,666 1,241,831

TOTAL NET POSITION 169,234$             12,268,865$        12,438,099$      

100



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020
Administrative Wet Utilities

Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 88,420$                   -$                            88,420$                 

          Army volumetric charge 1,445,418 1,445,418

          Army water supply charge 101,553 101,553

          Commercial & residential charge 140,618 140,618
     Other revenue - 4,703 4,703

          Total operating revenues 88,420 1,692,292 1,780,712

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 - 4,500

     Analyticals - 47,742 47,742

     Community relations 1,584 - 1,584

     Conferences & seminars 2,283 - 2,283

     Consulting 91,617 54,553 146,170

     Dues & memberships 1,443 - 1,443

     Engineering services - - -

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 16,251 16,251

     Equipment rental 107 107

     Insurance - 12,501 12,501

     Legal & professional fees 22,138 - 22,138

     Materials - 120,045 120,045

     Meetings expense 1,475 - 1,475

     Military affairs 11,000 11,000

     Office supplies and expense 330 - 330

     Permits - 32,120 32,120

     Repairs - 119,048 119,048

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 76,692 443,835 520,527

     Supplies & materials - 16,103 16,103

     Travel & training 5,401 5,401

     Utilities - 77,327 77,327

     Waste disposal - 26,887 26,887

     Water purchase cost - 148,980 148,980

     Web design & maintenance 1,480 - 1,480

     Miscellaneous 342 225 567

     Overhead allocation - water 98,185 98,185

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 106,651 106,651

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 107,557 107,557

          Total operating expenses 220,285 1,428,118 1,648,402

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (131,865) 264,174 132,310

     Depreciation 136 379,078 379,214

Operating income (loss) (132,001) (114,904) (246,904)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenue - 604,607 604,607

     Interest revenue - 20,747 20,747

     Administrative fund salary revenue - 76,726 76,726

     Project admin fees (2,325) (2,325)

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset 4,660 4,660

     Interest expense - (196,407) (196,407)

     Franchise fees expense - (50,192) (50,192)

     Special projects expense (37,173) - (37,173)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (37,173) 457,816 420,643

Income (loss) (169,174) 342,912 173,739

Net position, beginning of year 338,408 11,925,953 12,264,361

Net position, end of year 169,234$                 12,268,865$            12,438,100$          

101



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ADMINISTRATIVE FUND

For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 176,000$       88,420$         (87,580)$       50.24%

     Other revenues 31,000 - (31,000) 0.00%

     Total operating revenues 207,000 88,420 (118,580) 42.71%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Advertising 1,400 42 1,358 3.00%

     Accounting & audit 4,500 4,500 - 100.00%

     Community relations 8,000 1,584 6,416 19.80%

     Conferences & seminars 4,700 2,283 2,417 48.57%

     Consulting 200,000 91,617 108,383 45.81%

     Dues & memberships 7,735 1,443 6,292 18.66%

     Engineering services 150,000 - 150,000 0.00%

     Legal & professional fees 27,500 22,138 5,362 80.50%

     Meetings expense 6,000 1,475 4,525 24.58%

     Military affairs 10,000 11,000 (1,000) 110.00%

     Office supplies & expense 3,300 330 2,970 10.00%

     Salaries, wages & benefits 155,855 76,692 79,163 49.21%

     Subscriptions 400 300 100 75.00%

     Travel & training 18,000 5,401 12,599 30.01%

     Web design & maintenance 4,000 1,480 2,520 37.00%

     Wastewater services - Hooks & Maud 23,400 - 23,400 0.00%

          Total operating expenses before depreciation 624,790 220,285 404,505 35.26%

Depreciation - 136 (136)

Total operating expenses 624,790 220,421 404,369 35.28%

Income (loss) before special projects

     expense and transfers (417,790) (132,001) 285,789 31.60%

Special projects expense (100,000) (37,173) 62,827 37.17%

Transfer in 200,000 - (200,000) 0.00%

Change in net position (317,790) (169,174) 148,616 53.23%

Net position, beginning of year 338,339 338,339 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 20,549$         169,165$       (148,616) 823.23%

102



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020

Variance with % of

Budget Actual Budget Budget

OPERATING REVENUES

     Charges for services 3,541,962$            1,687,589$       (1,854,373)$  47.65%

     Other revenue - 4,703 4,703

     Total operating revenues 3,541,962 1,692,292 (1,849,670) 47.78%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Analytical 150,000 47,742 102,258 31.83%

     Consulting 60,000 54,553 5,447 90.92%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 43,000 16,251 26,749 37.79%

     Equipment rental 11,000 107 10,893 0.97%

     Insurance 39,000 12,501 26,499 32.05%

     Materials 233,000 120,045 112,955 51.52%

     Miscellaneous 12,000 226 11,774 1.88%

     Permits 55,000 32,120 22,880 58.40%

     Repairs 491,000 119,048 371,952 24.25%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 1,069,101 443,835 625,266 41.51%

     Supplies & materials 51,700 16,103 35,597 31.15%

     Utilities 188,000 77,327 110,673 41.13%

     Waste disposal 60,000 26,887 33,113 44.81%

     Water purchase cost 307,663 148,980 158,683 48.42%

     Overhead allocation - water 209,199 98,185 111,014 46.93%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 227,237 106,651 120,586 46.93%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 229,167 107,557 121,610 46.93%

          Total operating expenses 3,436,068 1,428,118 2,007,950 41.56%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 105,894 264,174 158,280 249.47%

Depreciation 780,000 379,078 400,922 48.60%

Operating income (loss) (674,106) (114,904) 559,202 17.05%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Facility charges revenues 1,243,931 604,607 (639,324) 48.60%

     Interest revenue 52,000 20,747 (31,253) 39.90%

     Other revenue 191,855 79,061 (112,794) 41.21%

     Interest expense (405,449) (196,407) 209,042 48.44%

     Franchise fees expense (106,259) (50,192) 56,067 47.24%

         Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 976,078 457,816 (518,262) 46.90%

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 301,972 342,912 40,940 113.56%

Capital contributions - 0 0

Transfers in (out) (200,000) 0 200,000 0.00%

Change in net position 101,972 342,912 240,940 336.28%

Net position, beginning of year 11,925,953 11,925,953 - 100.00%

Net position, end of year 12,027,925$          12,268,865$     240,940$       102.00%

103



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

ADMINISTRATIVE FUND

For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Member fees 88,420$                   96,961$                   (8,541)$                 -8.81%
     Other revenue - 27,989 (27,989) -100.00%

          Total operating revenues 88,420 124,950 (36,530) -29.24%

OPERATING EXPENSES

     Accounting & audit 4,500 7,171 (2,671) -37.25%

     Community relations 1,584 1,787 (203) -11.36%

     Conferences & seminars 2,283 2,599 (316) -12.16%

     Consulting 91,617 101,373 (9,756) -9.62%

     Dues & memberships 1,443 4,371 (2,928) -66.99%

     Engineering services - 58,276 (58,276) -100.00%

     Legal & professional fees 22,138 12,294 9,844 80.07%

     Meetings expense 1,475 2,482 (1,007) -40.57%

     Member Services - 5,825 (5,825) -100.00%

     Military affairs 11,000 8,202 2,798 34.11%

     Office supplies and expense 330 1,985 (1,655) -83.38%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 76,692 61,446 15,246 24.81%

     Travel & training 5,401 7,438 (2,037) -27.39%

     Web design & maintenance 1,480 2,900 (1,420) -48.97%

     Miscellaneous 342 330 12 3.55%

          Total operating expenses 220,285 278,479 (58,194) -20.90%

Operating income (loss) before depreciation (131,865) (153,529) 21,664 -14.11%

     Depreciation 136 136 - 0.00%

Operating income (loss) (132,001) (153,665) 21,664 -14.10%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

     Special projects expense (37,173) (156,886) 119,713 -76.31%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (37,173) (156,886) 119,713 -76.31%

Income (loss) before transfers (169,174) (310,551) 141,377 -45.52%

Transfers in (out) - 150,000 (150,000) -100.00%

Change in net position (169,174) (160,551) (8,623) 5.37%

Net position, beginning of year 338,408 492,061 (153,653) -31.23%

Net position, end of year 169,234$                 331,510$                 (162,276)$             -48.95%

104



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

WET UTILITIES FUND

For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 $ Change % Change

OPERATING REVENUES
     Charges for services:

          Army volumetric charge 1,445,418$              1,346,920$              98,498$                 7.31%

          Army water supply charge 101,553 93,759 7,794 8.31%

          Commercial & residential charge 140,618 275,696 (135,078) -49.00%
     Other revenue 4,703 - 4,703

          Total operating revenues 1,692,292 1,716,375 (24,083) -1.40%
-

OPERATING EXPENSES -

     Analyticals 47,742 44,407 3,335 7.51%

     Consulting 54,553 12,573 41,980 333.89%

     Equipment maintenance, repair & fuel 16,251 14,863 1,388 9.34%

     Equipment rental 107 6,169 (6,062) -98.26%

     Insurance 12,501 5,816 6,685 114.94%

     Materials 120,045 129,923 (9,878) -7.60%

     Permits 32,120 32,048 72 0.22%

     Repairs 119,048 58,351 60,697 104.02%

     Salaries, wages, payroll taxes & benefits 443,835 377,787 66,048 17.48%

     Supplies & materials 16,103 17,136 (1,033) -6.03%

     Utilities 77,327 66,719 10,608 15.90%

     Waste disposal 26,887 22,507 4,380 19.46%

     Water purchase cost 148,980 185,386 (36,406) -19.64%

     Miscellaneous 226 (294) 520 -176.87%

     Overhead allocation - water 98,185 79,307 18,878 23.80%

     Overhead allocation - wastewater 106,651 105,743 908 0.86%

     Overhead allocation - industrial wastewater 107,557 79,307 28,250 35.62%

          Total operating expenses 1,428,118 1,237,748 190,370 15.38%-

Operating income (loss) before depreciation 264,174 478,627 (214,453) -44.81%

     Depreciation 379,078 317,468 61,610 19.41%

Operating income (loss) (114,904) 161,159 (276,063) -171.30%-
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) -

     Facility charges revenue 604,607 680,892 (76,285) -11.20%

     Interest revenue 20,747 26,175 (5,428) -20.74%

     Administrative fund salary revenue 76,726 49,690 27,036 54.41%

     Project admin fees (2,325) 72,306 (74,631) -103.22%

     Gain (loss) on disposal of asset 4,660 - 4,660

     Interest expense (196,407) (210,768) 14,361 -6.81%

     Franchise fees expense (50,192) (52,390) 2,198 -4.20%

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 457,816 565,905 (108,089) -19.10%

Income (loss) before transfers 342,912 727,064 (384,152) -52.84%

-
Transfers in (out) (150,000) 150,000 -100.00%

Change in net position 342,912 577,064 (234,152) -40.58%

Prior period adjustment 104,233 (104,233) -100.00%

Net position, beginning of year 11,925,953 10,680,926 1,245,027 11.66%

Net position, end of year 12,268,865$            11,362,223$            1,010,875$            8.90%

105



RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020

Identification

Number

Maturity

Date

Balance

12/31/2019

Interest

Income

03/31/2020

Transfers

In/(Out)

Per Policy

Net 

Deposits/

Withdrawals

Balance

03/31/2020

Accrued

Int Rec

03/31/2020

Administrative Fund

Operations 50003704 Daily checking 233,842$      -$                 -$                  (84,493)$        149,349$     -$                  

Operations 457060 Daily savings 25 - - - 25 -

Operations 3011380 Daily savings 200 - - - 200 -

Wet Utilities Fund

Operations 21695 Daily checking 997,149 - (279,325) 318,273 1,036,097 -

Operations 21725 Daily savings 1,392 - (1,392) - - -

Restricted bond sinking 21709 Daily checking 868,144 3,389 307,539 (5) 1,179,067 -

Restricted bond reserves 21217 Daily checking 608,701 1,963 (2,067) - 608,597 -

Restricted construction funds 21741 Daily checking 475,789 1,534 (1,621) - 475,702 -

Restricted operations 7967600001 Daily prime 902,473 3,664 (2,473) - 903,664 -

Total - All Funds 4,087,715$   10,550$       20,661$        233,775$       4,352,701$  -$                  

The investment schedule of Riverbend Water Resources District is in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act and the District's Investment Policy.

Tara Houck, CPA

Chief Financial Officer

Funds

106



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. G. 

RWRD RESO 20200422-06 

Second Quarter Investment Report 

 

107



RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200422-06 

APPROVING THE 2nd QUARTER FY 2019-2020 INVESTMENT REPORT   

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 
district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 
District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has adopted an Investment Policy as 
required by law to manage the funds of Riverbend Water Resources District; and 

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy Reporting Section XIII requires that the Investment 
Officer prepare and sign a quarterly investment report that includes activity on all interest-
bearing accounts held by Riverbend Water Resources District; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Riverbend Water Resources 
District accepts and approves the 2nd Quarter FY 2019-2020 Investment Report. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2020

____________________________________ 
Sonja Hubbard, President 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Marshall Wood, Secretary 

Attached: Investment Report for Riverbend Water Resources District for the 2nd Quarter of FY 
2019-2020.

108



109




